
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Monday, 30 September 2019

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek

20 September 2019

PART 1
1. Apologies. 

2. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8)

3. To note the minutes of the previous meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel. 
(Pages 9 - 14)

4. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

5. Declaration of Interests: 

 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

 Other Interests

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

7. Your Housing Group - 6 Monthly Update. 

a) Your Housing Legacy Agreement. (Pages 15 - 20)
8. Declaration of Air Quality Management Areas. (Pages 21 - 40)

9. Work Programme (Pages 41 - 42)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:

 Chair’s Items
 Members’ Items

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Public Document Pack



Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor D Shaw (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley
Councillor G Heath Councillor I Herdman
Councillor K Hoptroff Councillor B A Hughes
Councillor B Johnson Councillor J T Jones
Councillor K Martin Councillor T Riley
Councillor P Roberts Councillor L Swindlehurst
Councillor P Taylor Councillor R Ward
Councillor P Wood Councillor N Yates



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING

Minutes

MONDAY, 17 JUNE 2019
PRESENT: Councillor D Shaw (Chair) 

Councillors J Aberley, I Herdman, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, 
B Johnson, K Martin, T McNicol, J Porter, T Riley, P Roberts, 
L Swindlehurst, P Taylor, P Wood and N Yates.

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor L A Malyon, C J S Atkins, B Cawley, T Holmes, M Bowen 
and P Wilkinson.

APOLOGIES: Councillors G Bentley and G Heath.

145 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Panel held on the 18th 
March 2019 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

146 TO NOTE THE LATEST REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE POLICE, 
FIRE AND CRIME PANEL.

Councillor Holmes introduced himself as the Council’s representative on the Police, 
Crime and Fire Panel. He requested that any comments or concerns were emailed 
to him and he would raise these with the Commissioner  and report back to 
members accordingly. 

In response to this, Councillor Swindlehurst requested an explanation of the extent 
of collaboration between the Fire and Rescue Service and Police, as outlined in the 
report dated 29th April 2019. She wished to establish what the common functions 
were and how the effectiveness of the changes would be monitored. 

DECIDED:

1) That the report of the Chairman of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel dated 29th 
April 2019 be noted;

2) That Councillor Swindlehurst would send an email to Councillor Holmes to 
outline the above query.

147 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY.

Councillor Elkin was a substitute member for Councillor Bentley.

148 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 June 2019

2

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest

Nature of Interest

None Specific
Cllr J. Porter

Other

A member of the Safer 
Neighbourhood Panel.

149 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY.

Question from Councillor Taylor:

Q1. Which company provides the energy supplied to the Staffordshire 
Moorlands offices and buildings?

Response: 

The company that supplies the energy is Total Gas & Power. This procured in 
accordance with Council procedures via the ESPO Framework.

Question from Councillor Taylor:

Q2. Where are the pollution monitors located in the Moorlands? What 
pollution levels do these monitors record and indicate? Where can this 
information be accessed?

Response: 

The locations of the pollution tubes are listed below:-

Location X: Y: Site Code:  
Wetley Rocks 396535 349111 1  
Tean 401095 339425 6  
Cheadle (Leek Road Rbt_ Central) (*2) 400967 343564 7  
Alton (Chapel) 407237 342257 8  
Leek (Moorlands House) 398486 356630 10  
Leek (Swan Hotel) 398295 356587 11  
Leek (Southlands Close) 397430 356516 12  
Cheadle (Tape Street) 400991 343363 14  
Biddulph (Knypersly, Cross Rds) 388030 356757 17  
Leek (Ball Haye St _ Central) (*2) 398691 356579 24  
Leek (Broad Street Jct North_1) 398354 356329 25  
Leek (Broad Street Vets_ South 1) 398159 356215 26  
Cheadle  (Leek Road Rbt_ North) 400968 343579 29  
Cheadle  (Leek Road Rbt _South) 400967 343548 30  
Leek (Ball Haye St _ South) 398688 356547 31  
Leek (Ball Haye St_ North) 398693 356616 32  
Leek (Broad Street Jct North_2) 398322 356305 33  
Leek (Broad Street Vets_ South 2) 398172 356253 34  
Leek (Broad Street North_3) (*2) 398333 356313 37  Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 June 2019

3

Cellarhead Junction_2 (*2) 395702 347548 38  
Cellarhead Junction_3 (*2) 395702 347553 39  
Leek (Broad Street Jct North_4) (*2) 398323 356306 41  
Cellar Head Juction 4 (*2) 395704 347562 42  
Cheadle Roundabout Special 400937 343457 45  
Broad Street South 398245 356232 47  
Broad Street Junction 398397 356322 48  
Cellar Head Juction 4 395811 347530 49  
Cheadle Tape St easb bound 401043 342917 50  
Cheadle Tape St west bound 401062 343045 51  
Cheadle Tape St west bound 2 401049 343151 52  
Cellarhead Junction_5 395727 347570 53  
Cellarhead Junction_6 395732 347575 54  
Cellarhead Junction_7 395754 347560 55  
Cellarhead Junction_8 395699 347577 56  
Cellarhead Junction_9 395711 347601 57  
Broad Street South 398107 356157 58  

The tubes monitor for Nitrogen Dioxide and indicate that pollution levels are 
generally good across the district but issues have been identified in Leek and 
Cellarhead, which require the declaration of an Air Quality Management Area and 
the development of an Air Quality Action Plan.  This will be the subject of a detailed 
report which will be presented to councillors shortly.  Information on Air Quality can 
currently be obtained by contacting the Service Area and will soon be available on 
the Council’s website.

By way of supplementary questions, Cllr Taylor asked who were Total Gas and 
Power and clarification of the ESPO Framework.

Mark Trillo – Executive Director (People), advised that ESPO was Eastern Shires 
Purchasing Organisation which assisted many local authorities to achieve 
efficiencies through frameworks, services and expert procurement advice.

Further information on Total Gas and Power would be circulated to the Panel after 
the meeting.

Councillor Taylor asked if any other pollution elements should be monitored and 
requested more clarification around good pollution levels. The Panel was advised 
that the Council employed a specialist in pollution and a report would be considered 
by this Panel in relation to an Air Quality Management Order.

DECIDED: That regular updates and an annual status report on the levels of 
pollution be added to the Work Programme.

150 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BRIEFING - MARK TRILLO - EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR (PEOPLE). (PRESENTATION)

Mark Trillo – Executive Director (People), introduced a presentation which covered 
the following topics:-

 Council’s Decision Making ProcessPage 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 June 2019

4

 Role of Scrutiny
 Role and Remit of the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel
 Development of the Work Programme
 Task and Finish Working Groups
 Role of Officers

The Panel discussed combined scrutiny panel working groups which all members 
were invited to take part in. 

151 COUNCILLOR COMMUNITY INITIATIVE PROGRAMME - MARK TRILLO - 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PEOPLE). (REPORT)

The Panel gave its consideration to a report which provided an update on the use of 
the Councillors’ Community Initiative Fund (CCIF) in 2018/19.

The Councillors’ Community Initiative Fund provided every Member with the ability to 
use a grant allocation of £500 to address community issues in their wards.

An application form and guidance notes were published on the Council’s website 
together with a record of each year’s grant expenditure.

In 2018/19 £27,992 was spent which had supported a total of 108 
projects/organisations.

A member of the Panel asked if it was possible to apply for the funding if the project 
was just outside of their ward boundary and it was confirmed that this would be 
considered and members could also make a combined application.

Members had differing views on the allocation of the grant funding. It was felt that 
some community groups received the funding each year and some less well known 
groups could be overlooked. Other members explained the limited opportunity for the 
allocation of funds in smaller single councillor wards and the importance of provision 
of funding in line with organisations’ calendars.

Members were reminded that there was a section on the CCIF application form to 
disclose any interests in connection to the group which they wished to support.

DECIDED: That the update report be noted.

152 WORK PROGRAMME

The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed, subject to, 
the following items being added:-

 Rural Bus Service (Update from Councillor Ralphs);
 Childrens Homes (Invite the County Council, a member of the Planning Team 

and the Police);
 Sustainability and Climate Change (Invite a representative from Staffordshire 

Wildlife in relation to a recent report) ;
 Flyposting, banners and advertisements.

Page 6



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 June 2019

5

In light of recent accessibility issues, a request was made for a review of polling 
stations. The Panel was advised that a review was due to take place, members 
would be consulted and the report would be considered by the Licencing and 
Regulatory Committee. 

It was confirmed that a new system for CCTV had recently been agreed by Cabinet 
and Mark Trillo offered to provide details should members require any more 
information.

At this point in the meeting, detailed discussion took place around the withdrawal of 
free TV licences for over 75 year olds. Members were concerned that for some 
pensioners this could lead to issues around social isolation and requested that a 
letter be sent to request that this decision was reviewed. A vote was taken as 
members had different opinions on where the letter should be sent to and it was 
decided that the letter should be sent to the Chancellor of the Exchequer with a copy 
of the letter sent to the BBC.

A vote was also taken on the start of the future meetings of the Community Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel and it was decided that the meetings continued to be held at 
2pm.

DECIDED: That the Panel’s Work Programme for 2019/20 be agreed. 

The meeting closed at 3.40 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel Meeting held on 15 July 
2019 

 
Present: Stephen Sweeney (Chairman) 

 
 Carl Bennett 

Randolph Conteh 
Paul Darby 
Stephen Doyle 
Ann Edgeller 
 

Brian Edwards 
Simon Gaskin 
Tony Holmes 
Keith Walker 
Jill Waring 
 

 
 
Apologies: Ashley Yeates 
 
PART ONE 
 
1. Appointment of Chairman 
 
RESOLVED – That Mr Stephen Sweeney be appointed Chairman of the Panel for the 
ensuing year. 
 
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman 
 
RESOLVED – That Mr Paul Darby be appointed Vice-Chairman of this Panel for the 
ensuing year. 
 
3. Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 
 
4. Minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2019 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2019 be confirmed and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
5. Appointment/Re-appointment of Co-opted Member of Panel 
 
The Secretary reported that Mr Walker’s term of office as a co-opted member of the 
Panel would expire on 4 November 2019.  He reported that the Panel’s Procedure Rules 
provided for the re-appointment of co-optees for a second term of office.  Mr Walker had 
confirmed his willingness to continue to serve as a Panel member. 
 
RESOLVED – That Mr Walker be invited to serve as a co-opted member of the Panel 
for a further four year term commencing 5 November 2019. 
 
6. Decisions published by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner (PFCC) 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

Details were submitted of a decision made by the Commissioner relating to the 
Provision of Fuel Cards for Emergency Vehicles, which had been published since the 
Panel’s last meeting. 
 
7. Questions to the PFCC from Members of the Public 
 
County Councillor Kyle Robinson attended the Panel and asked the Commissioner to 
meet with community representatives of Kidsgrove, Talke and Butt Lane to discuss their 
concerns at the increasing levels of crime and anti-social behaviour in their areas and 
the reduction in visible policing.  Mr Robinson also handed to the Commissioner a 2000 
signature petition opposing the closure of Kidsgrove Police Station. 
 
The Commissioner confirmed his willingness to meet with community representatives.  
 
8. Police Establishment - Update 
 
The Panel had sought to monitor Police Establishment numbers and recruitment 
following their decisions to support the Commissioner’s wish to increase the Precepts 
for 2018/19 and 2019/20 partly to fund the appointment of a total of 69 additional Police 
Officers. 
 
An Informal Workshop had been held in April 2019 to discuss Establishment numbers 
and recruitment, following which the Panel had requested further clarification of the 
numbers reported. 
 
A Briefing note issued to members had shown an increase in the Target Operating 
Model of 67.5 Officers for the 2018-2020 period however members queried the 
discrepancy between the Target Operating Model base figures quoted by the 
Commissioner and the statistics recorded by the Home Office. Panel members’ 
concerns were partly based on the national comparisons of policing numbers which 
showed Staffordshire to have had a year on year reduction in numbers over the last 10 
years and to be second lowest in terms of police officers per 100,000 population. 
 
The Commissioner reported on the constantly changing nature of Establishment figures 
due to reorganisation of the Force, retirements   etc and the lengthy recruitment/training 
process.  He also stressed that the Force’s response to the changing demands on the 
service had resulted in an increased need for skills and expertise available from non-
warranted personnel.  
 
Whilst the Commissioner gave assurances that the additional Police Officers were being 
recruited he argued that due to changes in the Model for policing, focus should be on 
the overall capability and capacity of the Force rather than numbers of warranted 
Officers.  The Chairman stressed the importance of the public having evidence of the 
increase in numbers in accordance with undertakings given at the time of setting the 
Precepts. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Commissioner be requested to provide further information on 
the overall staffing profile of the Force, including a base establishment number on which 
the commitment to recruit an additional 69 officers had been based and could be 
assessed. 

Page 10



 

- 3 - 
 

 
 
 
9. Annual Report on the handling of complaints against the Police, Fire and 
Crime Commissioner 
 
The Secretary referred the Panel’s responsibility to consider complaints about the 
personal conduct of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and/or his Deputy, the 
day to day management of those complaints having been delegated to him.  He 
reported that three complaints received during 2018/19 had related to administrative or 
operational matters rather than personal conduct and therefore had not been entered 
into the Panels complaints procedure. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Report be noted.  
 
10. Home Office Grant 2018/19 - Report on Final Claim 
 
The Secretary to the Panel presented his report on the allocation of the Home Office 
grant for the running costs of the Panel during 2018/19 explaining that an increase in 
Grant had been awarded mid year to reflect the addition of the Fire and Rescue Service 
to the Panel’s remit.  Of the £72,746 grant available a reclaim for £72,541.07 had been 
submitted. 
 
The Secretary reported that, whilst the Home Office had issued an assurance that Grant 
levels would be maintained for 2019/20 no official notification of that Grant had been 
received to date. 
 
RESOLVED: - that the allocation of the Home Office grant 2018/19 be noted and 
published in accordance with conditions of that grant.        
 
11. IT Transformation Contract with Boeing - Progress 
 
As requested, the Commissioner reported on the progress of the contract which he and 
the Force had with Boeing UK for the delivery of IT Transformation projects over a 10 
year period at a contract price of around £100m.  
 
Panel had asked for an update on the contract  as it has been in operation for 3 years. 
 
The Commissioner reported that to date Boeing’s main focus had been on the delivery 
of the Niche integrated records management system which would replace 12 core 
systems which had been in use over the past 8-20 years.  Originally savings of £0.5m -
£1m had been predicted from updating IT capability however the Commissioner 
explained that any savings were affected by the level of demand for IT support therefore 
the wider roll out of the technology, the more cost. The roll out and costs were 
considered as part of the normal budget allocation processes. 
 
The Commissioner reported that it was essential that systems operated by the Force 
were compatible with those of other Forces in order to be able to respond to national 
policing needs and the increasing trend in cross Force boundary crime. Members 

Page 11



 

- 4 - 
 

sought information on the extent to which IT contributed to policing and the operating 
Model adopted  in Staffordshire both at present and in the future.  
 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted and the Commissioner be requested to present 
an overview of the use, and impact, of IT onr  policing in Staffordshire both currently and 
anticipated in the future. 
 
12. Collaboration Update (Including Police Estate) 
 
The Commissioner gave an update on collaboration opportunities between the Police 
and Fire and Rescue Services, particularly referring to the rationalisation of the Police 
Estate. He reported that 8 Police service buildings were being marketed for sale and 
commented on the pleasing level of bids received.  
 
Members queried the arrangements for alternative public direct access to personal 
police support following the closure of a number of Stations, with reference made to the 
absence of any access points in the Rugeley area. The Commissioner acknowledged 
the need to better publicise arrangements for alternative access to police support. 
 
Responding to a query on the intended use of Capital Receipts from the sale of 
buildings, the Commissioner reported that he would determine allocation in the future. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
13. Staffordshire Commissioner's Annual Report 2018/19 
 
As statutorily required, the Panel considered and commented on the Commissioner’s 
Annual Report on the progress of delivery of his Police and Crime Plan (The Safer, 
Fairer, United Communities for Staffordshire Strategy).  
 
The main point discussed by the Panel for inclusion in their formal, published feedback 
to the Commissioner were: 
 

 Acknowledgement of the success of the SPACE scheme, with 2018 attendances 
reported to be 30,000 with a 41% reduction in Anti Social Behaviour during the 
period when the scheme is in operation. Panel members commented on the 
dependence of the scheme on a Partnership approach. 

 The development of a scheme to improve offenders’ access to the Labour 
Market. The Commissioner reported the intended commissioning of a new 
service in 2019 aimed at offering employment opportunities for offenders in the 
construction sector.  He also reported his views on the need for Prison Service 
reform to give emphasis to rehabilitation and prevention of re-offending 

 The Panels’ interest in the work of ‘Catch 22’ a social, not for profit business, 
delivering support for victims of CSE and children who go missing. In 2018/19 
3,126 reports were received of children missing from home/care, involving 1,421 
children. The Commissioner reported on multi agency work to address this issue 
both within the UK  and beyond. In addition, Catch 22 had  received 365 referrals 
for children requiring support around CSE. 

 

Page 12



 

- 5 - 
 

RESOLVED – That the Panel’s views be formally reported to the Commissioner and 
published on the Panel’s and Commissioner’s websites. 
 
 
14. Safer, Fairer, United Communities for Staffordshire -Update 
 
The Commissioner presented his quarterly update on the delivery of the Safer, Fairer, 
United Communities for Staffordshire Strategy, identifying for each priority area the 
activity over the quarter, planned activity and milestones ahead. 
 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 
15. Fire and Rescue Corporate Safety Plan 2020/2023 - Progress 
 
The Commissioner presented an update on the delivery of the Fire and Rescue Service 
Corporate Safety Plan which incorporated the Integrated Risk Management Plan.  He 
detailed the progress of Work Programmes and projects under each of the 3 priorities in 
the Plan namely: Education and Engagement, Community Safety and Wellbeing, and 
Planning, Resilience and Response.  
 
The Commissioner particularly referred to his wish to build on the success and 
effectiveness of Safe and Well visits through collaboration with the Police  Service.  He 
also reported on the challenge of recruiting Retained Firefighters  but stressed his 
determination to ensure that sufficient cover existed County -wide. 
 
Referring to potential opportunities for wider collaboration, the Commissioner confirmed 
that he would continue to seek discussions with the West Midlands Ambulance Service 
on First Response arrangements. 
 
The intention to hold a Workshop/Briefing for Panel members on the requirements of the 
Corporate Safety Plan prior to formal consultation on its contents was noted 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
16. Fire and Rescue Plan 2019/20 -Draft Interim Version 
 
The Commissioner reported that whist he was required to produce and issue a Fire and 
Rescue Plan shortly following the transfer to him of governance responsibility for the 
Service, he proposed to provide an Interim Plan only.  This would enable his successor, 
to be elected in May 2020, to align all Plans required for the 2020-2024 period.  He 
submitted his Interim Plan for comment. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Interim Plan for 2019/20 be supported.  
 
17. Questions to the PFCC by Panel Members 
 
Members of the Panel questioned/sought the views of the Commissioner on the 
following issues and received the responses indicated: 
 

Question/Issue Response 

Page 13



 

- 6 - 
 

What transition arrangements is the 
Commissioner putting in place to 
assist his successor post May 2020 

The normal procedures for handover 
will be followed 

Has the closure of the Burton 
Custody facility had any detrimental 
affect on the efficiency of the service 

The reduction to 2 sites has been 
successful. Custody Service 
provision has been returned in 
house. Recruitment of Detention 
Officers is proving to be challenging. 

What progress has been made with 
discussions with Districts and 
Boroughs on CCTV systems 

All Leaders have been contacted as 
agreed. Differing views. It may be 
feasible for them to explore joint 
working arrangements. Note that the 
budget previously provisionally 
earmarked by the OPCC is no 
longer available. 

Can PCSOs be authorised to deal 
with parking offences 

Will pursue with the Chief Constable 

Parking restrictions in the vicinity of 
the A50/A500/Bet 365 Stadium need 
to be actively enforced. 

Will pursue with the Chief Constable 

 
18. Dates of Future Meetings and Work Programme 
 
RESOLVED – That with the addition of a Workshop/Briefing on the Fire and Rescue 
Service Corporate Safety Plan, the Work Programme and Schedule of Meetings be 
approved. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

Page 14



Moorlands Housing Association Legacy Agreement

Introduction
In xxxx, Moorlands Housing Association transferred it engagements to Arena Housing Group. This means that governance will be undertaken 
by those members of the YHG Common Board who govern Arena and will now also have a specific oversight and responsibility for Moorlands.
This legacy agreement was developed by and for:

 Moorlands Housing Association
 Your Housing Group (YHG)
 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC)

Status of this document
The Legacy Agreement is a goodwill agreement between Your Moorlands, YHG and SMDC and sets out the conditions for change to the legal 
structure.  It is not, nor is intended to be a legal agreement. This is because there is already a legal agreement (the Relationship Agreement) 
with YHG and there is no intention or desire from either party to amend this existing legal document. The Relationship Agreement sets out 
mutual rights and responsibilities of each party.

It should also be noted that this Statement is not an agreement between YHG and the monitoring body. The ultimate responsibility for the 
delivery of the conditions lies with the board members responsible for Arena Housing Group on the Common Board and this cannot be 
changed under the Relationship Agreement.

Monitoring against conditions
The monitoring body will be the SMDC Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel supported by a YHG Customer Involvement Panel (CIP) of 
residents who are customers in the Moorlands area. The customers on the CIP will be recruited and supported by YHG and will attend the 
Scrutiny Panel Meetings where SMDC will encourage their participation in the meeting. YHG will collate and present the monitoring 
information for the conditions below on a six-monthly basis to the monitoring body. Further detail is provided in condition 2 of the 
commitments as set out below.

The Commitments

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7a



Ref Condition Monitoring Progress Note Date of 
Update

Lead Officer

1 A named member of the Group Board will be 
identified and will maintain active knowledge and 
oversight of issues of strategic importance to the 
Moorlands area.
One current tenant member of the Moorlands 
Board to be nominated to be recruited to the 
current vacant position on the Services 
Committee of the Group Board. Upon this 
position becoming vacant in the future, for this 
position to be filled by undertaking a targeted 
recruitment exercise in the local area to find a 
suitable candidate.

The identity of the named member to be 
provided to the monitoring body.

Tenant member in place on the 
Committee from the date of transfer.

Group 
Company 
Secretary

2 SMDC’s existing Community Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel to be appointed as the monitoring body 
and to receive information twice yearly on:

• The status of the delivery of all the 
conditions in the legacy agreement (as 
described in the ‘monitoring’ section of 
these commitments)
• Information on local service delivery 
performance
• Information on the Group’s strategic 
approach to growth and stock 
ownership/investment/divestment
• Notification of significant service changes

YHG to recruit and support a Customer 

Reports received twice yearly presented 
by a senior manager from YHG to the 
monitoring body and the Services 
Committee.

Customer Involvement Panel to be 

Operations 
Director 
South

P
age 16



Ref Condition Monitoring Progress Note Date of 
Update

Lead Officer

Involvement Panel (up to a maximum of five 
customers) to attend the panel meetings to add a 
customer perspective. SMDC to encourage these 
customers to participate in the meeting. One 
current tenant member of the Moorlands Board 
to be nominated to be recruited to the Customer 
Involvement Panel.

The Services Committee of the Group Board to 
also receive these updates and members to be 
invited to attend relevant meetings of the SMDC 
Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

recruited.

3 To undertake the delivery of the investment 
programme in line with the Savills’ Stock 
Condition Survey presented in November 2015. 

The Capital Investment plan for 2017/18 
to be developed and approved by YHG 
by April 2017 and annually thereafter by 
April each year.

Tracking the delivery of the Investment 
Plan will be monitored using agreed 
Group Key Performance Indicators for:

• Overall expenditure to date & 
programme progress reporting by 
committed and completed spend 
• Unit costs 
• Number of component 
replacements

Group 
Director of 
Assets

P
age 17



Ref Condition Monitoring Progress Note Date of 
Update

Lead Officer

4 The YHG Growth Strategy states we have an 
aspiration to deliver a minimum of 1,200 per 
annum new homes across the areas in which we 
work, either direct or with partner bodies. The 
growth is planned to be mixture of tenures that 
will include an aspiration of 200 affordable 
homes. We will use our best endeavours to 
deliver 100 homes per year in the Moorlands 
area, subject to the Group have sufficient 
financial resources and the new development 
meeting the conditions of the Group’s ‘golden 
rules’.

To be monitored through the 
communication of annual YHG strategic 
aspirations for development.  

Number of development opportunities 
explored: 
• A summary of potential capacity, 

return on investment, tenure mix, 
strategic link, competitive process

• In progress – explanation to provide 
summary update on position 

Information on committed schemes: 
• Summary update on current status 

and progress 
• Annual development activity in 

Moorlands area as a percentage of all 
YHG development activity

Development 
Director

5 Senior manager with local knowledge to be 
assigned to provide direct contact for local 
councillors for customer query/dispute 
resolution.

The identity of the named manager to be 
provided to the monitoring body to 
communicate to local councillors.

Operations 
Director 
South

6 YHG will continue with the internal provision of 
day-to-day, voids and planned works within the 
Moorlands area through its DLO or other 
structure which employs local labour providing 
this is commercially viable.

The following information to be 
provided to the monitoring body:

• Performance data on day-to-day 
and void works

 % of planned works that has been 
delivered through the in-house 

Commercial 
Director

P
age 18



Ref Condition Monitoring Progress Note Date of 
Update

Lead Officer

YHG will continue to explore opportunities with 
High Peak and any other local opportunities to 
develop JV’s, cost sharing vehicles or 
management agreements, these will only 
progress if the arrangement can add strength 
and value to the existing in house provision.
 

provision.

7 In accordance with the Group’s Customer First 
methodology, develop and implement a YHG 
neighbourhood plan which will include a 
minimum financial investment of £73k per 
annum for at least 3 years.

Consultation on the 2016/18 details and 
principles of the YHG neighbourhood plan with 
Moorlands Board.    

Information on the progress in delivery 
of the plan.

Task & Finish to be formed to support 
the development of the plan, including 
representation from SMDC Communities 
Team.

Operations 
Director 
South

8 In accordance with the YHG project to increase 
digital methods of interaction, Your Moorlands 
customers will be able to access the service via a 
digital platform including web chat, email, text 
and via the website and social media. 

In addition to these access points a base in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands will be retained that 
provides accessible services for tenants, whilst 
there is demonstrable need, for a period of no 

Status of available methods of 
interaction to be provided to the 
monitoring body.

Status of the base and footfall measure 
to be provided to the monitoring body.

Director of 
Your 
Response

Commercial 
Director

P
age 19



Ref Condition Monitoring Progress Note Date of 
Update

Lead Officer

less than 2 years from the commencement of this 
Agreement. 

Where mention is made of the Services Committee in this agreement, this would also apply to any subsequent Committee of the Group Board 
that takes on the co-regulatory function which supersedes or replaces this Committee.
Where mention is made of a Customer Involvement Panel in this agreement, this would apply to any subsequent YHG recognised group that 
carries out the same function by any other name.
Remedy process

1. If issues arise in relation to progress with the Statement of Assurance then the remedy process will be, in order of escalation: 
a. Initial discussion between the monitoring body and YHG at the appropriate level (depending on the nature of the problem). This 

could be officer, director or Group Committee or Board level. This will aim to provide an agreed approach to resolution in a 
reasonable timeframe. The agreed resolution and timeframe will be set out in writing following that discussion for the benefit of 
both parties. 

b. If the outcome of (a) is not satisfactory within the agreed timeframe, the monitoring body may write to the Group Chief 
Executive outlining the issue and proposals for resolution and an indicative timescale for resolution.

c. If the issue cannot be remedied under 1(b) then the matter shall be placed on the agenda of the next meeting the YHG Common 
Board.  This meeting will seek to agree a resolution to the matter in an agreed timeframe. The agreed resolution and timeframe 
will be set out in writing for both parties. 

d. If the issue cannot be remedied under 1(c) then each Party will move forward to participate in conciliation.  The issue will be 
referred to an independent expert who is to be agreed by YHG and monitoring body within 10 working days of the meeting date 
under 1(c). 

e. The expert is entitled to make a decision as he/she thinks equitable having regard to all the circumstances. This may include the 
imposition of additional obligations on either or both parties as he/she thinks fit. 

f. The expert’s decision shall be final and binding. 

P
age 20



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report to Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

30 September 2019

Appendices attached:

Appendix 1 – Cabinet Report (30th July 2019) Declaration of Air Quality Management 
Areas
Appendix 2 – AQMA Order 
Appendix 3 – Table 3 Action Plan

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 For the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel to be kept informed of 
the recent declaration of Air Quality Management Areas in Leek and 
Cellarhead. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel be requested to 
consider the contents of the Air Quality Action Plans for both Air Quality 
Management Areas.

2.2 That members note the resolution of Cabinet on 30th July 2019, to 
make an order under Section 83 of the Environment Act 1995 declaring 
AQMA’s and to declare AQMA’s on the basis of Option 2 for Leek and 
Option 2 for Cellarhead.

 
3. Executive Summary

3.1 The attached report outlines the recommendations to ensure the 
Council meets its legal duty in relation to the declaration of Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMAs), as required by the Environment Act 1995.

TITLE: Declaration of Air Quality Management Areas

PORTFOLIO: Councillor S Scalise – Portfolio Holder for Environment

OFFICER: Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental Health

WARDS: Leek and Cellarhead

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



3.2 It had been found necessary to declare two AQMA’s encompassing the 
roads and properties in Ball Haye Street/Broad Street, Leek and Leek 
Road, Cellarhead.

3.3 The following options were considered:

AQMA 1 – Leek
1. The AQMA be restricted to the properties confirmed as 

exceeding AQ objectives (based only on directly collected data);
2. The proposed AQMA shown in Fig. 1 within the Cabinet report;
3. The AQMA shown in Fig. 1 but the area of the contour is 

widened by a further 5m.

AQMA 2 – Cellarhead
1. The AQMA be restricted to the properties confirmed as 

exceeding AQ objectives (based only on directly collected data);
2. The proposed AQMA shown in Fig. 2 within the Cabinet report.

3.4 Cabinet made an order under Section 83 of the Environment Act 1995 
declaring AQMA’s in the form appended to the report and agreed to 
declare AQMA’s on the basis of Option 2 for Leek and Option 2 for 
Cellarhead.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

 
Web Links and Background Papers Location Contact Details

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.
uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MI
d=1377&Ver=4

Regulatory Services
Moorlands House
Stockwell Street
Leek 

Alicia Patterson 
Head of Environmental 
Health
alicia.patterson@staffmoorla
nds.gov.uk
Tel: 01538 395400 ext 4408

Page 22

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=1377&Ver=4
https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=1377&Ver=4
https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=1377&Ver=4
mailto:alicia.patterson@staffmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:alicia.patterson@staffmoorlands.gov.uk


STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report to Cabinet

30 July 2019

Appendices attached:
Appendix 1 – AQMA Order 
Appendix 2 – Table 3 Options 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To make recommendations to ensure that the Council meets its legal 
duty in relation to the declaration of Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMAs) as required by the Environment Act 1995.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Cabinet makes an Order under Section 83 of the Environment Act 
1995 declaring Air Quality Management Areas in the form attached at 
Appendix 2.  

2.2 That Cabinet agrees to declare Air Quality Management Areas on the 
basis of Option 2 for Leek and Option 2 for Cellarhead.

2.3 That the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel be requested to 
consider the contents of the Air Quality Action Plans for both Air Quality 
Management Areas.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The outcome of an assessment of the air quality in Leek and 
Cellarhead has concluded that it is necessary to declare two Air Quality 
Management Areas (AQMAs), encompassing the roads and properties 
within these areas. 

TITLE: Declaration of Air Quality Management Areas

PORTFOLIO: Councillor S Scalise – Portfolio Holder for Environment

OFFICER: Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental Health

WARDS: Leek and Cellarhead

Page 23



3.2 The declaration of AQMAs is required because levels of Nitrogen 
Dioxide have been found to exceed the National Air Quality Standard. 
Under these circumstances the Council is obliged by the provisions of 
the Environment Act 1995 to declare an Air Quality Management Area. 
A map showing the extent of the proposed AQMA is provided in the 
report.

3.3 It is recommended that the Cabinet declares AQMAs on the basis of 
Option 2 in both Leek and Cellarhead.  It is further recommended that 
the Air Quality Action Plans in both cases be considered by the 
members of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 This report supports the following Council’s Corporate Aims:

 Aim 1: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our 
residents to live and work.

 Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment.

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 The Executive is asked to consider the report, and determine whether 
the evidence provided is sufficient to recommend that an Order under 
Section 83 of the Environment Act 1995 declaring an Air Quality 
Management Area be made, for Option 2 detailed below for the Leek 
area and Option 2 for Cellarhead. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

There are no Community Safety issues arising from this report. 

6.2 Workforce

There are no workforce implications arising from this report.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.

6.4 Financial Considerations

Page 24



There are no initial financial implications arising from this report. All 
assessments will be carried out as part of the Council’s routine work. 
However, the Council may need to seek support from external bodies 
should any further modelling be required for the preparation of the 
action plan. Typically the cost of this would be in the region of £5,000.

6.5 Legal

The Council has a statutory duty to manage Air Quality in its area and 
where nationally set criteria are exceeded to declare an AQMA. Once 
declared, the Council is obliged to prepare, following due consultation 
with interested parties, an Air Quality Action Plan. The Plan must 
subsequently be implemented. Failure to do so may result in legal 
action being taken against the Council.

6.6 Sustainability

There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.

6.7 Internal and External Consultation

Public consultation cannot change the decision of whether or not to 
declare (this is mandatory). However, a public notification/informative 
exercise has been completed to inform  those affected, including:

 Letters and information to all residents affected;
 Web Promotion. 

6.8 Risk Assessment

It is a statutory requirement that the Council assesses air quality and 
takes action where appropriate. In this case there is an obligation to 
declare an AQMA. The necessary process is underway and there are 
no risks to the Council at this stage of the process.

The European Commission has formally launched infraction 
proceedings against the UK for breach of nitrogen dioxide limit values 
under the EU Air Quality Directive. Part 2 of the Localism Act allows 
the Government to require responsible authorities to pay all or part of 
an infraction fine. By undertaking its statutory duties and carrying out 
all reasonable measures to address breaches of the nitrogen dioxide 
limits, it is anticipated that such fines will not be derogated to this 
Council.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

 
Web Links and Background 
Papers

Location Contact Details

Page 25



Regulatory Services
Moorlands House
Stockwell Street
Leek 

Alicia Patterson 
Head of Environmental 
Health

7. Background and Detail

7.1 Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts.  In 
common with the rest of the UK, the main sources of air pollution 
across the Staffordshire Moorlands are emissions from road traffic, in 
particularly Nitrogen Dioxide and Particulate matter. 

7.2 Typically, the highest road-side concentrations of these pollutants are 
found on roads with high traffic volumes and/or where traffic regularly 
queues. However, roadside pollution also tends to reduce as you move 
away from the traffic therefore, when measuring pollution, the 
government requires Councils to focus on areas considered to be 
“relevant exposure”.  In other words, it should be representative of the 
air people actually breathe.   This usually means the concentrations at 
a person’s home (i.e. at the façade of the property) but it can also mean 
another location at which people spend a lot of time, such as a town 
centre or school.  

7.3 Legal Framework 

Section 82 of the Environment Act 1995 requires a Local Authority to 
review and assess local air quality against national health based 
standards for seven key pollutants set out in the Air Quality Regulations 
2000 (as amended). The regulatory framework previously set up a 
phased approach to this work starting with an Update and Screening 
Assessment and moving to a detailed assessment where further work 
is are required. In 2016, the regulatory system changed, and the 
phased approach has been replaced by the requirement to produce an 
Annual Status Report (‘ASR’). 

7.4 The government publishes Air Quality objectives for the individual 
pollutants, and the Council is required to determine if we have got a 
pollution issue by comparing our monitoring data with these objectives.  
Under Section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, where air quality 
objectives are not being met (or are predicted to not be met), the local 
authority must proceed and designate this area as an Air Quality 
Management Area (‘AQMA’). 

7.5 Local Authorities are charged with a number of duties relative to the 
declaration of an AQMA:

7.5.1 Action Planning 

Page 26



Once an AQMA has been declared, the local authority has a 
year to publish an action plan setting out how the Authority 
intends to use the measures and powers available to work 
towards improving the air quality within the AQMA.  In instances 
relating to traffic generated pollution, the powers are primarily 
available to other organisations, such as the relevant highways 
authority rather than the District Council. Changes in the 
statutory policy guidance place a greater emphasis on highway 
authorities to take a leading role in developing actions plans, 
when the cause of air quality exceedances is predominantly from 
roads under their responsibility. As such, any action plan will be 
developed in conjunction with those bodies.  

7.5.2 Review Action Plan Progress

Progress on implementing the action plan will be reviewed 
annually.

7.6 Proposed Air Quality Management Area 1 (AQMA_1):  Leek 

Exceedances of Air Quality objectives for Nitrogen Dioxide have been 
measured directly at 2 properties in Leek. One along Broad Street and 
one along Ball Haye Street. These are shown in Table 1. 

Table 1. Monitoring data from relevant locations in Leek
Location Ref: 2016 2017 2018
Leek (Ball Haye St _ Central) 24 43.2 42.6 37.8
Leek (Ball Haye St _ South) 31 34.6 34.3 31.6
Leek (Ball Haye St_ North) 32 39.5 36.4 36.2
Leek (Broad Street Jct North_1)* 25 47.4 42.1 42.4
Leek (Broad Street Vets_ South 2) 34 33.5 29.2 27.0
Leek (Broad Street North_3) 37 45.3 42.3 38.9
Leek (Broad Street Jct North_4) 41 37.7 32.7 31.1
Broad Street South 47 *** 24.9 26.9
Broad Street Junction 48 *** 33.6 32.2
*Not “relevant” exposure (property)
*** Data not available; monitoring location set up in 2017 

7.7 To determine the extent of the possible AQMA, this (and other data) 
was used to prepare a detailed Air Quality assessment (using a 
computer model) to predict what other areas in Leek may currently be 
exceeding the AQ objectives for Nitrogen dioxide. 

7.8 The results of the detailed assessment are shown Figure 1, using a 
contour plot to aid visualisation of this area.  They indicate that the 
majority of predicted AQ exceedances are “within the roads” but also at 
around 74 properties.   It should be noted that this is a 
conservative/worse case scenario and is likely to have resulted in the 
over-prediction of pollutant concentrations so may suggest a larger 
area of exceedance than is actually occurring.  However, it will provide 

Page 27



the basis for a conservative AQMA to be declared, that ensures that all 
potential areas of exceedance are included.   

Figure 1: Proposed extent AQMA_1:  Leek  (Option 2)

7.9 AQMA_1: Leek,  Options to Consider

Three options can be considered when declaring the extent of the 
proposed AQMA_1: Leek,   

 Option 1: The AQMA is restricted to the properties confirmed as 
exceeding AQ objectives (based only on directly collected data). 

Comment:  This is the minimum requirement to comply with the 
above act. 

Required Action: To produce an Action Plan with 1 year. 

Negatives:  Declaration of an AQMA can be perceived as an 
“economic negative” by home owners, and the declaration of small 
areas may focus this perception.  Focused actions on small areas 
(not Leek wide) could move or exacerbate potential problems in other 
areas of Leek (identified as being potentially at risk). 
As we have completed a detailed assessment and identified other 
potential areas of exceedance, we would have to present a strong 
argument to central government to not include these areas in our 

Page 28



AQMA (for example, by the instigation of larger scale monitoring in 
areas identified as potentially exceeding acceptable levels). 

Positives: That SMDC (and stakeholders) are addressing health 
concerns along Broad Street / Ball Haye.   Allows for more specific 
focus on problem areas, though many of the possible actions could 
have a positive benefit on Leek as a whole.  

 Option 2:  (Preferred Option).  The proposed AQMA is the area 
shown in red on Figure 1. 

Comment: Allows for a more extensive AQMA to be declared that 
ensures that all potential areas of exceedance are included.   

Required Action: To produce an Action Plan with 1 year. 

Negatives:  As with Option 1; declaration of an AQMA can be 
perceived as an economic negative by home owners and extending 
the area means more homes may have this perception. 

Positives: That SMDC (and stakeholders) are addressing health 
concerns along Broad Street / Ball Haye but allows for a more Leek 
wide approach to tackling air quality as well as specific focus on 
problem areas. May reduce negative impact by including more 
properties and making declaration more “road specific”.

 Option 3: The AQMA is the area shown in red on Figure 1   but the 
area of the contour is widened by a further 5m.  

Comment: Allow for an increased area of declaration that ensures 
that all potential areas of exceedance are included. Widening the 
contour by 5m means an additional 131 (205 total) properties are 
within the proposed AQMA compared to Option 2. 

Required Action: To produce an Action Plan with 1 year. 

Negatives:  As with Option 1 & 2; declaration of an AQMA can be 
perceived as an economic negative by home owners and extending 
the area means more homes may have this perception. This may 
give the impression Leek has a worse air quality problem than is the 
case. 

Positives: As with option 2.  That SMDC (and stakeholders) is 
addressing health concerns along Broad Street / Ball Haye and 
allows for more Leek wide approach to tackling air quality as well as 
specific focus on problem areas. May reduce negative impact by 
including more properties / making declaration more “road specific”

7.10 Proposed Air Quality Management Area 2 (AQMA_2):  Cellarhead 

Page 29



Exceedances of Air Quality objectives for Nitrogen Dioxide have been 
measured at 4 properties at Cellarhead crossroads, on the North Bound 
Leek Road.

Table 2: Monitoring data from relevant locations in Cellarhead
Location Ref: 2016 2017 2018
Cellarhead Junction_2 38 50.8 48.5 41.3
Cellarhead Junction_3 39 51.1 48.7 41.1
Cellarhead Junction_4 42 48.9 41.6 39.8
Cellarhead Junction_5 49 *** 28.2 29.3

*** Data not available; monitoring location set up in 2017

7.11 To determine the extent of the possible AQMA, this (and other data) 
was used to do a detailed Air Quality assessment (using a computer 
model) to determine what other areas in around Cellarhead may be 
exceeding the AQ objectives for Nitrogen dioxide.  

7.12 The results of the detailed assessment are shown Figure 2, using a 
contour plot to aid visualisation of this area.  They indicate that the 
majority of predicted AQ exceedances are “within the roads” but also at 
around 15 properties.   

7.13 It should be noted that this is a conservative/worse case scenario and 
is likely to have resulted in the over-prediction of pollutant 
concentrations so may suggest a larger area of exceedance than is 
actually occurring.  However, it will provide the basis for a conservative 
AQMA to be declared, that ensures that all potential areas of 
exceedance are included.   

Page 30



Figure 2: Proposed extent of AQMA_2: Cellarhead (Option 2)

7.14 AQMA_2: Cellarhead,  Options to Consider

Two options can be considered when declaring the extent of the 
proposed AQMA_2: Leek, Cellarhead:   
  
 Option 1: The AQMA is restricted to the properties confirmed as 

exceeding AQ objectives (based only on directly collected data). 

Comment:  This is the minimum requirement to comply with the 
above act. 

Required Action: To produce an Action Plan with 1 year. 

Negatives:  The air quality problem is occurring at a junction and 
needs to be considered together.  As we have completed a detailed 
assessment and identified other potential areas of exceedance, we 
would have to present a strong argument to central government to 
not include these areas in the AQMA. 
 
Positives: That SMDC (and stakeholders) are addressing health 
concerns of these properties.   
 

 Option 2:  (Preferred Option).  The proposed AQMA is the area 
shown in red on Figure 2. 

Page 31



Comment:  Allows for a more extensive AQMA to be declared that 
ensures that all potential areas of exceedance are included, and the 
junction is considered as a whole.   

Required Action: To produce an Action Plan with 1 year. 

Negatives: Declaration of an AQMA can be perceived as an 
economic negative by home owners and extending the area means 
more homes may have this perception. 

Positives: That SMDC (and stakeholders) are addressing health 
concerns of these properties and wider Cellarhead junction. 

8.0 Action Planning 

Once declared, both AQMAs require a separate action plan to be 
produced within 1 year. The action plans needs to set out how the 
authority intends to use the measures and powers available to work 
towards improving the air quality within the AQMAs. 

Although the plans will be produced separately, the broad structure for 
each action plan will look at the same possible actions so are discussed 
together below.  It should be noted that work has already started on 
preparing the action plan at both locations, with actions highlighted in 
bold.

8.1 General 
The Action Plans will take a practical approach and focus on what really 
matters – identifying the nature of the problem, and detailing measures 
that are or will be introduced to improve air quality at the local level. 

The Council will not be preparing or implementing  the action plan in 
isolation and  will engage with relevant local (e.g. Staffordshire County 
Council) and national stakeholders (e.g. Highways England, Public 
Health England and Central Government), to help deliver the required 
outcomes.  

These will include the following actions: 

 Quantification of the source contributions (e.g. HGVs, buses, taxis 
etc.) responsible for the exceedance. 

Knowing the source of the problem will allow the Action Plan measures 
to be effectively targeted Completed for both.

This exercise shows that, in the majority of cases, emissions from cars 
contribute the largest proportion to the overall annual mean nitrogen 
dioxide concentration (both), followed by emissions from LGVs and 
HGVs (Leek) and HGVs and LGVs (Cellarhead). 

Page 32



 
 Identify Measures to effectively target the source of the problem 

(Ongoing) , these might include interventions such as: 

o Improve  public education on air quality and encourage the  use 
of public transport, cycling, walking, park and ride schemes, and 
car sharing; 
SMDC were active in gaining a grant to appoint 2 Air Quality 
education specialists, 1 to liaise with businesses and 1 to 
engage with schools (the officer recently attended Westwood 
first school);

o Improving existing road layouts and junctions to optimise traffic 
flow, for example moving junctions or adjusting traffic light 
timings (in conjunction with Staffs CC);  

This has been done at Ball Haye (timings) and officers are looking 
at the Cellarhead junction – ongoing:

o Infrastructure improvements;   redesign of local roads to improve 
traffic flow and reduce idling traffic; the creation of park and ride 
services; (in conjunction with Staffs CC) ;

o Encouraging uptake of electric vehicles via ensuring adequate 
charge points (in conjunction with Staffs CC);

o Engage with local business to adopt fleet recognition schemes 
for emissions (ongoing);  

SMDC currently offer a fleet recognition scheme for businesses free 
of charge;
o Review of SMDC’s policies and procedures to promote air quality 

(ongoing);

A full detailed list of possible actions under consideration is given in 
Appendix 2 (Table 3).  

 Measuring the impacts of the proposed measures – including, 
where feasible, data on emissions and concentrations so the 
Council can demonstrate how it intends to monitor and evaluate the 
effectiveness of the plan; 

 Clear Targets, including milestones and expected outcomes which 
the authority and other delivery partners propose to implement the 
measures within the Action Plan; 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Air Quality Management Area Order

Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83(2)

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, in exercise of the powers conferred upon it 

by Section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, hereby makes the following Order.

This Order may be cited/referred to as the Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

Air Quality Management Area No 1 (Leek) Area No 2 (Cellarhead). and shall come 

into effect on XXXXXX

The area shown on the attached maps in red are to be designated as  air quality 

management areas (the designated areas). The designated areas incorporates the 

Cellarhead and Leek. 

This Area is designated in relation to a likely breach of the Nitrogen Dioxide annual 

mean standard as specified in the Air Quality Regulations 2000.

 This Order shall remain in force until it is varied or revoked by a subsequent order.

The Common Seal of Staffordshire Moorlands District Councill was hereto affixed on 

XXX and signed in the presence of  xxxxxx   on behalf of said Council

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Table 3:  Action Plan, additional approaches being considered:   
Bus based Park & Ride

Car & lift sharing schemes

Car Clubs

Rail based Park & Ride

 Alternatives to private vehicle use

Other

Introduction/increase of environment charges through 
permit systems and economic instruments

Introduction/increase of environmental funding through 
permit systems and economic instruments

Large Combustion Plant Permits and National Plans going 
beyond BAT

Measures to reduce pollution through IPPC Permits going 
beyond BAT

Other measure through permit systems and economic 
instruments

Tradable permit system through permit systems and 
economic instruments

Environmental Permits

Other

Delivery and Service plans

Freight Consolidation Centre

Freight Partnerships for city centre deliveries

Quiet & out of hours delivery

Route Management Plans/ Strategic routing strategy for 
HGV's

Freight and Delivery Management

Other

Air Quality Planning and Policy Guidance

Low Emissions Strategy

Other policy

Policy Guidance and 
Development Control

Regional Groups Co-ordinating programmes to develop 
Area wide Strategies to reduce emissions and improve air 
quality

Page 37



Sustainable Procurement Guidance

Emission control equipment for small and medium sized 
stationary combustion sources / replacement of 
combustion sources

Low Emission Fuels for stationary and mobile sources in 
Public Procurement

Other measure for low emission fuels for stationary and 
mobile sources

Public Procurement of stationary combustion sources

Regulations for fuel quality for low emission fuels for 
stationary and mobile sources

Shift to installations using low emission fuels for stationary 
and mobile sources

Promoting Low Emission Plant

Other Policy

Company Vehicle Procurement -Prioritising uptake of low 
emission vehicles

Low Emission Zone (LEZ) or Clean Air Zone (CAZ)

Priority parking for LEV's

Procuring alternative Refuelling infrastructure to promote 
Low Emission Vehicles, EV recharging, Gas fuel 
recharging

Public Vehicle Procurement -Prioritising uptake of low 
emission vehicles

Taxi emission incentives

Taxi Licensing conditions

Promoting Low Emission 
Transport

Other

Encourage / Facilitate home-working

Intensive active travel campaign & infrastructure

Personalised Travel Planning

Promote use of rail and inland waterways

Promotion of cycling

Promoting Travel Alternatives

Promotion of walking

Page 38



School Travel Plans

Workplace Travel Planning

Other

Via leaflets

Via other mechanisms

Via radio

Via television

Via the Internet

Public Information

Other

Anti-idling enforcement

Emission based parking or permit charges

Reduction of speed limits, 20mph zones

Road User Charging (RUC)/ Congestion charging

Strategic highway improvements, Re-prioritising road 
space away from cars, inc Access management, Selective 
vehicle priority, bus priority, high vehicle occupancy lane

Testing Vehicle Emissions

UTC, Congestion management, traffic reduction

Workplace Parking Levy, Parking Enforcement on 
highway

Traffic Management

Other

Bus route improvements

Cycle network

Public cycle hire scheme

Public transport improvements-interchanges stations and 
services

Transport Planning and 
Infrastructure

Other

Driver training and ECO driving aidsVehicle Fleet Efficiency

Fleet efficiency and recognition schemes

Page 39



Promoting Low Emission Public Transport

Testing Vehicle Emissions

Vehicle Retrofitting programmes

Other

Page 40



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2019/20

Date Items for Agenda
3 June 2019

Overview & Scrutiny Briefing/Councillor  Community Leadership Programme
Councillor Community Initiative Scheme

15 July 2019 Meeting Cancelled
30 September 2019

Air Quality Management Areas
Your Housing Group – 6 Monthly Update

2 December 2019
Cheadle CAB – Annual Update (Julie),Biddulph CAB – Annual Update (Samantha Hubbard) Leek CAB – 
Lindon Parr.

3 February 2020
Local Policing Team Annual Update – Chief Inspector Mark Thorley
Flyposting, banners and advertisements – David Smith & Ben Haywood

23 March 2020
Matthew Ellis, Staffordshire Commissioner – Police, Fire and Rescue Annual Update
Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually
Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  - confirmed
Local Policing Team  Annual Update - confirmed
Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update 
Fire & Rescue  Service Annual Update - invited
Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update – confirmed 
Rural Bus Service – Update from Cllr Ralphs TBC
State of Staffordshire Wildlife Report – Staffordshire Wildlife TBC
Children’s Homes – Gail Edwards, Mark Thorley & Ben Haywood TBC
Regular Updates and an Annual Status Report on the Levels of Pollution

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	3 To note the minutes of the previous meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel.
	7a Your Housing Legacy Agreement.
	8 Declaration of Air Quality Management Areas.
	Appendix 1 - Cabinet Report AQMA
	Appendix 2 - Air Quality Management Order
	Appendix 3 -  Table 3 Action Plan

	9 Work Programme

